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CONTRACT DESCRIPTION

ACC's Environmental Programs Division, Compliance Branch (HQ ACC/CEVC) through the ACC Contracting Squadron (ACC CONS) awarded five Architectural and Engineering (A&E) contracts to provide various environmental compliance and analysis services. The scope of the contracts are for study and design type services and not construction or environmental clean-up action.  Services include the areas of (1) environmental analysis (NEPA), (2) natural/cultural resource plans, reports, surveys, 

(3) environmental compliance, (4) pollution prevention, (5) restoration (study/investigation phases only), (6) study and design services, (7) environmental training, outreach, seminars, (8) other environmental services.  



The Environmental Compliance and Analysis Services (ECAS) contract is an Indefinite Delivery Order Indefinite Quantity (IDIQ), firm-fixed price contract.  The capacity of the ECAS contract is $100 million for each of the five awarded firms.  The five firms chosen for the ECAS are:  Radian; CH2M HILL; Parsons Engineering Science; EA Engineering, Science, & Technology; and Ecology and Environment, Inc.



The ECAS program is structured to allow for both centralized (HQ ACC managed) and decentralized (base level managed) award and execution of delivery orders.  Centralized orders will be issued and administered through ACC CONS, and decentralized orders will be issued and administered through the requesting organization's base contracting activity.



DELIVERY ORDER PROCESS

The chronological order of events for generation and completion of each delivery order is as follows and is illustrated in the following attachment:



	1.  Technical project manager (TPM) obtains project validation/funding approval.

	2.  TPM submits statement of work (SOW) and government cost estimate to ECAS PM.

	3.  The ECAS PM reviews SOW, ranks the five ECAS firms and makes the selection (with input from the

	     TPM).  2-3 days

	4.  ECAS PM (centralized) or TPM (decentralized) develops delivery order (DO) package and submits

	      to contracting activity (CA).  5 days

	5.  CA reviews DO package and provides comments (if applicable) to ECAS PM

	     or TPM.  2-5 days

	6.  CA issues delivery order for preproposal conference (if necessary).  2 days

	7.  Contracting Officer issues request for proposal (RFP) to contractor.  2 days (priority) - 14

	     days (routine)

	8.  TPM, with ECAS PM, review proposal/submit technical review comments to CA.  2-5 days

	9.  Optional: CA and TPM conduct a fact finding session with contractor when appropriate (i.e., 

	     when clarification or areas of concern need to be addressed prior to negotiation.)

	10. CA prepares pre-negotiation objective.  1-2 days

	11. CA, with assistance from TPM, negotiate DO with contractor. 1 day

	12. Issue notice-to-proceed/DO.  1 day (longer if additional funds are required) 

	13. TPM monitors contractor performance/recommends approval of work complete on invoices.

	14. TPM reviews submittals and provides comments via the CA to the contractor.

	15. CA provides DD Form 1421 (A-E evaluation form) to TPM upon project completion.

	16. TPM completes and returns DD Form 1421 to CA.  5 Days



	NOTE:  All times are based on average workload conditions and can be compressed for priority

	             processing.

ECAS CONTRACT RESPONSIBILITIES



ECAS PROGRAM MANAGER (PM):  Focal point in civil engineering for the development, management, and execution of contracts.



Delivery Order (D.O.) Package Development:

The ECAS PM performs a cursory overview of requirements and provides assistance to the Technical Project Manager (TPM) with each delivery orders as follows:



Scores and Ranks contractors (with input from the TPM). 

		+ Contractor selection is the responsibility of the ECAS Program Manager.  For each delivery 			   order, all five firms are ranked/evaluated based on five criteria:  (1)  technical performance, (2)  			   professional qualifications, (3)  quality of work performed, (4)  geographical location and (5)  			   volume of previous work.



		+ The ECAS PM evaluates each contractor’s SF 254/255 and DD Forms 1421 as applicable to 			   each specific delivery order.  The firm with the highest ranking is selected for the respective 			   delivery order.



Provides sample copies of statements of work (SOW) and/or assists TPM with preparing the SOW and government cost estimate (if requested).

(Centralized only)  Assembles D.O. package and forwards to ACC CONS/LGCE.



Execution:

Tracks all delivery order invoices (centralized).

Tracks percent completion for each delivery order.

(Centralized only)  Ensures that all formal correspondence to the contractor is routed from HQ ACC/CEV through ACC CONS.



Contract Completion:

Ensures that the DD Form 1421 (contractor evaluation) is completed by the TPM and forwarded to ACC CONS/LGCE.



TECHNICAL PROJECT MANAGER:  Ensures the delivery order and product meet the intended requirement.



Centralized DO Management:  The technical project manager (TPM) is responsible for the development and monitoring of  the delivery order.  Assistance is available from the ECAS PM.



Decentralized DO Management:  The TPM obtains project validation/funding from HQ ACC; submits a draft statement of work to the ECAS Program Manager.  After evaluation and contractor selection, the ECAS PM will assist the base in developing the delivery order package for submission to base’s contracting activity.  The TPM will provide technical oversight during project execution and provide the contractor with feedback on performance throughout the project.  At project completion, the TPM will complete the DD Form 1421 (contractor evaluation), provided by the contracting activity.



Project Development:

Identifies requirement, loads into A106 and obtains project validation from HQ ACC/CEVCP.

Processes AF Form 9 (funding) upon receipt of funding advice from HQ ACC.

Generates Delivery Order Package to include:

		1.  Statement of Work (SOW).  (Check with ACC to see if similar SOW is available)

		2.  Payment monitoring plan (attachment in SOW)

		3.  Government cost estimate (labor rates can be provided by ECAS PM)

		4.  Contractor ranking/selection sheet (provided by ECAS PM)

		5.  AF Form 9

(Decentralized)  Forwards D.O. package to contracting activity.

(Centralized)  Forwards D.O. package to ECAS PM.

Attends pre-proposal conference (if required).

Performs technical review of contractor’s proposal; provides comments to contracting activity.

Assists contracting activity with negotiations.



Execution:

Tracks contractor progress and validates monthly invoices for contractor payment.

Reviews and prepares comments on contractor submittals (if required) and forwards them to the contractor (copy to contracting activity).  Reviews and consolidates base comments (if applicable).

Attends on-site field investigations with the contractor (as necessary).

Attends meetings with contractor, base, and/or regulating agencies (as necessary).



Completion:

Completes contractor evaluation (DD Form 1421) upon project completion (form will be provided by contracting activity).



DELIVERY ORDER PACKAGE



(  Delivery Order Package Composition:



Statement of Work (SOW):  The SOW clearly defines the specific requirements of the project for a firm-fixed price contract.  The contractor will need a detailed description in order to prepare a proposal.



Consider the following as you prepare to build the SOW:						- What are the objectives of the project?  Keep the project focused on achieving the objectives.		

	- What service do you want?  Do you expect a high degree of contractor developed strategy and 		   policy recommendations, or a straight forward data collection and manipulation?  Frequent		   contractor and government interface for developing policy or new procedures?  How much 		   coordination is the contractor expected to perform among organizations?  These considerations 		   impact the numbers and types of personnel required.							

	- How soon must the project start and when must it be completed?  This impacts the number of 		   personnel required for a given period.									

	- Where will the project be performed?  At which installation(s)?

	

	- How many do you want?  Will the project involve plans or studies of more than one site?  		   Performing an assessment of more than one process?  Is there a learning process that leads to 		   improved efficiency or reuse of information in subsequent tasks?

	- Do you want technical transfer or training so similar subsequent projects or tasks can be 			   performed in-house?

ECAS SOW Format

HQ Air Combat Command developed the following SOW template to assist in developing SOWs:



ECAS SOW TEMPLATE��1.	GENERAL��1.0	Introduction ��1.1	Background��1.2	Scope of Services��1.3	Applicable regulations (optional) and definitions (optional)��1.4	Government Furnished Equipment��2.	PROJECT ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT��2.1	Meetings, Conferences, Site Visits��2.2	Public Meetings/Hearings��2.3	Training/Education/Briefings��3.	ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE AND ANALYSIS ACTIVITIES��3.1	Specify Environmental Compliance and Media (e.g., air, water)��3.2	Detail Specific Requirements��3.3	Environmental Services��4.	SUBMITTALS/DELIVERABLES��4.1	Reports��4.2	Progress Reports��4.3	Meeting Minutes��4.4	Site Visit Reports��4.5	Databases/Computer Programs/Software��

�SYMBOL 183 \f "Symbol" \s 10 \h�	Payment Monitoring Plan (see attached example):  In order for the Technical Project Manager to track and approve monthly invoices for the delivery order, milestones and assigned percentages must be developed for each stage of work.  The payment is typically included as an attachment to the SOW.

�(  Payment Monitoring Plan (EXAMPLE)





tASKS	Task percentage             ACTUAL % COMPLETE



Pre-Proposal Conference (optional)	 1		________



Execution Plan / Field Visit	 4		_________



Initial Field Investigation	 15		_________



Follow-Up Field Investigation	 20		_________



Draft Report	 40		_________

 

Final Report	 20		_________



TOTAL	100



�GOVERNMENT COST ESTIMATE





(  GOVERNMENT COST ESTIMATE:  As a preliminary step in the cost estimating process, it is helpful to prepare a man-hour estimate, broken down by task.  The tasks should parallel the tasks as described in the statement of work.  Since all five of the ECAS contracts were negotiated separately, labor categories and rates vary between contractors.  The ECAS PM will provide the TPM with a cost estimate spreadsheet including the applicable labor rates when the TPM is ready to prepare the final cost estimate for inclusion in the delivery order package.



	_________________MANHOURS ______________	



PROFESSIONAL	Task 1	Task 2	Task 3

CATEGORIES	

Program Manager	_____	_____	_____

Project Manager	_____	_____	_____

Environmental Legal Counsel	_____	_____	_____

Civil Engineer	_____	_____	_____

Structural Engineer	_____	_____	_____

Mechanical Engineer	_____	_____	_____

Electrical/Systems Engineer	_____	_____	_____

Chemical Engineer	_____	_____	_____

Geotechnical Engineer	_____	_____	_____

Chemist	_____	_____	_____

Environmental Engineer	_____	_____	_____

Geologist	_____	_____	_____

Hydrogeologist	_____	_____	_____

Biologist/Ecologist	_____	_____	_____

Industrial Hygienist/Toxicologist	_____	_____	_____

Hazardous Waste Specialist	_____	_____	_____

Engineering Technician	_____	_____	_____

Draftsperson	_____	_____	_____

CaDD Operator	_____	_____	_____

Word Processor	_____	_____	_____

Clerical	_____	_____	_____



Subtotal Man-hours	_____	_____	_____



TRAVEL

Number of trips					_____			_____		      _____

�CONTRACT DEFINITIONS





DEFINITIONS:

Administrative Contracting Officer (ACO) � Warranted contracting officer responsible for the administration of the ECAS contracts.  The ACO may be different for centralized and decentralized delivery orders.  Additionally, the ACO may be from a DCMAO and/or an EPA office.

AF Form 9 (purchase request) � The funding document (under this contract) utilized for most delivery orders.  Requires the technical project manager and HQ ACC/CEVC signature prior to forwarding to HQ ACC/CER.

Centralized Delivery Orders � A delivery order negotiated, awarded, administered, and surveyed by the ACC CONS/LGCE and HQ ACC/CEVC.

Contracting Activity � The contracting activity responsible for fulfilling the requesting organization's requirement through the negotiation, award, administration, and surveillance of a delivery order.

Decentralized Delivery Orders � A delivery order negotiated, awarded, administered, and surveyed by organizations other than the ACC CONS/COE and HQ ACC/CEVC.

ECAS Program Manager � HQ ACC/CEVC point of contact and contract manager for the ECAS contract.  Responsible for the oversight of the ECAS and assistance to the technical project managers as required for delivery order development, execution, and close-out.  Primary point of contact to the ACC CONS/COE.

Obligation Authority (OA) � AF Form 616 is the funding document used to transfer money between Air Force agencies.  In some cases, an AF Form 616 may be used for decentralized delivery orders.

Performance Evaluation Report (DD Form 1421) � The A�E evaluation form which is completed at the end of each delivery order by the TPM.  Any excellent or poor ratings must be substantiated by the evaluator with evidence of that type of performance.

Pre�Proposal Conference � For complex requirements, a pre�proposal conference will be held.  The conference is between the cognizant contracting activity, technical project manager and/or COTR (optional), program manger (optional), and the contractor.  The conference will be held after cognizant contracting activity has sent a request for proposal to the contractor and prior to the contractor submitting their proposal.  Purpose of the conference is to come to an understanding of the requirements in the statement of work in order for the contractor to prepare their proposal.

Requesting Organization � The organization/base requesting through HQ ACC/CEVC to have work accomplished through the ECAS contracts.

Statement of Work (SOW) � The narrative portion of the delivery order package which states the specific requirement for the delivery order.  The SOW also includes a payment monitoring plan which breaks out specific work requirements with percentage complete for the delivery order in order to monitor monthly payments.

Technical Project Manager (TPM) � Person who will develop and monitor specific delivery orders in their area of expertise.

Contracting Officer’s Technical Representative (COTR) - Individual responsible for inspection and acceptance of delivery services received.  The COTR is also responsible for maintaining contractor surveillance.  Can be the same individual as the TPM.
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